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BRUNTWOQOD SCIENCE LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

In this year where Permacrisis was chosen as the Collins Diclionary’s word of the year, [ am delighicd to anbounce yef anofher strotig set of numbers for

Bruntwood SciTech. We are reporting Profit Before Tax of £114m and a 36.7% increase in Met Worth 10 £319.4m. These resalis are testament to the resilience of .
the Bruntwood SeiTeech progosition throughout and coting out of the Covid pandemic and are a reflection of the significant (ransactions that we agreed anci

subsequently compteted during that period.

Permactisis is an appropriate word apainst the econemic backdrop of Rrexit, Covid and now the cost of living crisis, yei we believe that the product and operating
platform fhat we have oreated along with our focus on the thrving growlh sectors of @ 4th Industrial Revolulion powered by science and technology position us
well against whai (s oo looking ke an inevitable recession.

We recognised 2021 as a tipping point for the momentum of the business with our expansion in the Golden Triangle alonaside our develapment activily across one
current Birmingham, Cheshire and Manchester assets. We have carried this momentum inte 2022 with our expansion inte Glasgow following the acquisition of Met

Tower in March 2022 atongside ths formalisation of the 1D Manchester joint venture with the University of Manch with work inuing on the devel t

P

of its masterplan leading infe a 10 year runway of aclivity for the business in Manchester,

Our property porifolic has increased in value ¢ £858.44m, up from £647.4m last year via a combination of the continued {nvestment in our pertfofio and a
strengthening of market sentiment towards science and technology focussed real esfaie. As we continue ta baild our network actoss the UK the porifolio remains
weighted towards development activity with the growth seen in sur portfolin value this year cvident of another successful year of developasent and letting activity

across reeently ph

d develor at Manch Scisnce Park, Aldertey Park where a new range of histech chemistry izhoratorics have been completed and

the comipletion of the final lettings at the first phase of Circle Squars.

Gross Profit has incressed from £12.7m to £16.8m in the year representing a full year of income for the Melbourn Science Park assets acquired in March
2021, alongside the letting up of Circle Square which resufts in a significant reduction in void costs and recognition of rental income for the completed
transactions, We have also seen further redevelopment achivity at Alderley Patk which has scen previously cost-incurring spaces redeveloped into lettable space

reducing the operating cosls across the site.

Bruntwood SciTech retains our ambitious target to grow the asset base to £2bh over the next 5 years and 2022 has seen significant progress against that target. We
believe the dedicated focus in the science and technology sector is critical 10 this growth and the continued ability to attract, retain and expand thess customers is

refiant &n our continied inveslment in our products and services with over £31m of capital investment during the year.

Qur banking club bas continued to support us throughout 2022 with drawdowns against the invesiment facilily agreed in 2021 to fund the refurbishment activity.
Throughout this pericd our gearing ratio continued to fall in line with the increase in property valuations highlighted above, Our wider funding network has also
seen us ulilise third party development finance provided by the Northwest Evergreen Furd and Oaknorih Back which has seen us develop the Base building at
Manchester Science Park, Enferprise Wharf at Innovation Birmingham, Binningham Health innovation Campus and Mat Tewer in Glasgow respectively.

It's increasingly apparent that innovation, scicnce and technalogy have to be the basis of our future economy, especially in our regional cities. Already we are
seerng the businesses of the 4th industrial revolution flowrish in ous cities, with those at the torefront being unafraid to disrupt their sectors through application of
innovative technologies. We have continued 10 campaign for devolving more responsibility for funding innovation to loca! autherities to enable power and decision
making (o be embedded within 1hat place.

While the term levelling up has gone in and out of fashion over the last 12 months, the idea of increasing investment in the regional cities has nol. We have worked |
with Incal parinees in our cities to make the case to Government for insreased RED funding to support the UK economy as a whole and for more of this to be
directed towards our regional citics in a way that is additive overall. This is not simply about investing in University rescarch, although {kis is very important, but
teansfating the excelient R&D (nte jobs and growta by improving take up and adoption by businesses in our city regions. The arpumen has been accopted and three '
Innovation Accelerators (in Greater Manchesicr, the West Midlands and Glasgow) announced early in the year will begin piloting a new approach to cevoived and

private sector led decision making en innovation funding, and the building of innovation ecosystems that drive productivity and growth.

The Brunhwood and Bruntwood SeiTech business model has always been about inore than providing physical space. We want to suppott the long ferm sugoess of
our regional cities and for this we know thal we need to invest in the wider innovation and community scosystam. This means ensuring that businesses have access

to funding, skills and talent and the oppoarturity to creale deep networks, all of which we do through our Innovation Services.



BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

We also incrensingly support businesses by investing directly of through our contribation to fumds stich as Northern Gritsione and the GM and Cheshize Life
Seiences funcl, Often these arc bosinesses in our porifolio but sometimes are aligned businesses that we see supporting a healthy local econamy. Regardless of
where they are based they will b making a contribution lo creating thriving cities - by acting to address climate chanpe, reduce incqualities related to education,
skills or henlth, or adding to the culturaf vibrancy of our cities, In addition to our business contribution we also support these same priaritics philantbropically and
through the Oglesby Charitable Trust, This layered focus amplefies the impact we have in our day to day business to the benefit of our customers, communilies and

colleapgues.

The overarching puepase of Bruatwood Group is Creating Thriving Citévs, aiming to suppoit successful 16was and cities where businesses wan to start up, grow
and mpve 10 and peopic want to live Legal & Genetal Capital is commitied (o regenerting Britain’s towns and citics using s long-tea capital 1o make
investments that arc mutually benefisial to its sharchoiders and the econemy, as wel! as having o positive socictal impucl, The e sharebolders are therefore
completcly aligned in their overnrching purpose and their Bruntwood's SciTech Joint Ventare’s part in this is to create a network of thriving intovation disiricts

which sees us doing mare than just developing individual buildings but contributing fully (o making cities that work For people and busingsses,

By foeussing as the UK's lcading property provider dedieated 1o the growsh of the science and tech sector and providing coinnovation and collaboration
opponunities for the businesses located on our campases, both within and between cities, Brontwood SeiTech is trly bringing *Creating Thriving Cities" to life
across the whole of the UK. We have a very different proposition to other businesses operating in the life sciences and technology sector, where our business is s0
routed in place nnd ereating deep ecosystems. We aim to help cities to develop their sirategies and align our sirategy behind them, fooking at the areas of growth in

the econoiny and the intrastructures required for delivery.

Whilst we procced with caution due to the wider economic environment we look shead lo another busy year continuing the growth of the Brantwood SeiTech
business 15 we subinit the masterplan proposals for [D Manchester and Melbourn Science Pack in 2023, begin the next phase of development at Circle Square and
Citylabs, complete Enterprise Wlharf and the first phase of Birmingham Heslth [nnovation Campus, and start on site at Met Tower. We also continne fo review the

next investinent phases across our other repions o continue to develop thriving innovation districts across the UK.

C G Ogleshy - Chairman 31 January 2023




BRUNTWOQOD SCIENCE LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORY
For the Year Tnded 30 September 2022

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

n 2012 Bruntwood bagan 1o create specinlist facilities for svience and technoiogy businesses, first 85 majority shareholdes st Manchester Science Park and then
through swiiership of Alderley Park. This beoame a significant part of the Bruntwood business and spporfunity for growth, and a new Joint Venture was crealed
with Lepal end General Capital in Seplember 2018, Bruntwood SciTech has a goal 1o ereate a network of theiving innovation districts across the UK and plans that
would see our asset base grow from £380.4m (o £2bn over the nest 5 years, The business continues te grow new opportunities in new markels and these grow from

our experience of creating parimerships, particnioily with academic and chinical institations and loeal goversment,
T 2023 Bruntwood SciTech will continue to focds an its core priorities:

- Driving opermional performmance in existing titdes and lotations
- Growing the existing portfolic 10 meet customer demand
Supporting customer growth through the evolution of the SciTech network and ecosystem

- Developing oppartunities for expansion into new citics

Bruntwood SciTech as part of Bruntwoad Group beiefits from ar established and weil tesied business moded - comprising cur prrpose, brand and vatues, produots,
commercial and eperational models and systems ond processes,  This continues to evotve but creates efficiency for Brantwood SeiTech aliowing the business to

goin from the expertise and activity of Bruntwood.

The Brotntwood Group was sel up 46 years ago and (s now 4 |eading repional property company, The business develops, owns and manages a portfolio of
commercial properly across Greater Manchester, Leeds, Liverpool and Birmingham, The business has always laken a long term view of investment and has
derived real valze in working across the whole property ownership lifeeycle. Bruntwood has a decp commitment to the success of the cities in which it operates,
playing an important part in their grovah - cconomicatly and socially, Creating thriviag cities has always been al the heart of the business’s ambitions. The focus
on customers has been a key part of the Bruntwood offer, innovating and providing services and experietices ghead of the market throughon its 46 year

history, The focus on flexible products, the ability 10 support individual businesses as they grow and create a true sense of business commanily is central fo the
propesition. The business's 666 colleagues and urique culture are arguably Brantwood's grealest asset. The approach to insonrcing and growing talent provides

veal competitive advantage, sllowing the business 10 get close to cuslomers and deliver what they need when they need it

Bruniwgod SciTeck equakly realises the benefits of being part of the T.egal & General Group, which holds a strong and established brand presence in the

sector. Legal & Giencral is one of the UK's leading financial services groups and a major global jnvestos, With over £1.2 trillion in (otal assels uader snanagement,

Legal & Qeneral is the UK s largest invesiment manager for corporale pension schemes. RBruntwond SciTech is part of Legal & Genoral Capital (LGC), the )
Group’s alternative asset platform, crealing esscls for Lege! & Genrera) Retiretnent and third-party clienis in order to achieve improved risk-adjusted shareholder )
returns, LGC has built its markel leading capabitities in a range of altermative ussets, delivering depth of resource, track record and intellectual

properly. Bruntwood SciTech benefils frotn LGC’s approach to investing in the real economy which sees 1he creation of alierative assets that deliver a tangible

sacietal impact; “investing sacizty' s capital for seciety’s benefit”,

SECTION 172

The revised UK Cozporate (Governance Code requices Directors Lo cxplain how they considered tha interests of key stekeholders and the brosder malters set out i
section 172{1) (A) to (F) of the Companies Act 2006 (*s172') when parfoming their duty (o promate the success of the Company under 172, Thig includes
cansidering the inferest of olher stakeholders which will have an impact on the long-term success of the company. This 5172 statement explains how Bruntweod

SciTech Directors:

- have A with emplayees, suppliers, ¢ s and athers; and
- have had regard to employee interests, the need to foster the cosmpany’s business relationships with suppliers, cnstomers and other, and the effect of that regards,

including on the principal decisions laken by the company during the finencial year.
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SECTION 172

RRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

Seciion 172

{a) The likely

in the long term

e of any decisi

The Group undertakes a robust business planring process on an aanual basis with a five year
plan approvad by the board. Performance against this is monitored by the board on a quanerly
basis, on an operational and finaneial fevel. The board considers capital allocation as part of the
planning process, including triggers for approval of specific capital spend. The board monitors

the risk levels of its deployment of capital, against pre-agreed levels.

The Group is funded via a mix of medium and longer term funding, spreading the refinancing
risk, The Group reviews fiture Dnancing reqtizements quarierly, alongside clear targets for

fimancial restlience,

(b} The inierest of the company’s employees

{c} The need to foster the company's

business  relationships  with  suppliers,

cusiomers and others

..aren will take place in Mareh 2023, . .

‘The Group places considerable value on the involvemuant of its employees and has continued to
keep them informed on tratters affeciing then 2s employses and on the varfous faciors affecting
the performance of the Group and the company. There are a namber of formal and informal
mechanisms for ensudng two-way employee commuaication, including an annual engagement
survey, frequent pulse surveys to previde feedback on <ifferent topics affecting employees,
{istening forums, peee learning groups, |eadership podeasts, monthly newslatters, an ahnual *all
colleapue’ conference and use of cur new communications platform B-Hive. Our engagement
aetivity this year has been highly focused on offering weltbeing benefits and initiatives, reward
and recognition and ensuring all colleagues have a full understanding of our strategic priorities

and the part they play in helping the orpanisation to achieve these.

Since launching sur Diversity & Inclusion stratzgy in 2019, the Group has worked to build our
culture of inclusion and to bring our colleagues back together following the distuption of
leckdowns, We have worked to amplify our colleagues' voices, and introduced a new Allyship
programme to help us, The propramme to achieve the tarpets we have set ourselves is well
undervay, with an fnitial focus on changing how we recruit. This has been coupled with a
continued emphasis on providing opportunity, through Appranticeships, plucements and our

valunteering with schonks.

The Group conlinues membership and strong links with the Greater Manchaster Grood Employer
Charter which reflects the steength of our employment pracliess. We are also proud to be
accredited by the Real Living Wage foundation. This focus on fair and good employment has
supported our work on gender equality, and while there is siill more 1o do, we were pleased to

see gur Gender Median Gap at 9% for April 2021, The next review of our performanee in this

Qur overarching purpose Creating Thriving Cities sees us doing more than just developing
individuat buildings but contributing fully 10 meaking cities that work for people and businesses.
Delivering this putpose requires strong and mutually beneficial relationships with our citstomers,

suppliers and other key stakehoiders,

The shareholders and key management personnel recognise the importance of shaping the citles
we lve in, we contribute a3 individaals too - helping to shape the communities we're in by
offering our talest and ¢nergy 1o everything from shaping a city’s long-term steategy to helping
young, prpple_from deprivad communitiss wioilz their CVs
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BRUNTWOQOD SCIENCE LIMITED

() The need to foster the company ‘s business
relationstips with soppliers, customers and

others (eontinued)

(d) The impact of the company’s operations

on the commutiity and environment

The Group conducts regular customer engagement surveys 1o dotermine the Net Promater
Seore (NPS) of the Group. The results are reviewed by the Boerd on a sepular basis,
Additionally, the Group's intemal customet experience team carry out regular intemnal customer
interview and mystery shopper exercises to ensure the Group is engaging with custemers in the

best possible way.

This year we've delivered o 8% response rae against a target of 15%. The Custamer
Satisfaction score {CSAT) was 4.24 (vs target of 4.2) and the Customer EffoAt seore (CES)

was 2,20 (vs target of <2,75) - low senres represent Jower effort.

The group now elso has an embetdded Voice of the Castomer (VOC)} progranune. The vOC
programime s a customer (nsights progrumme that is divisionally aligaed with the same
overarching objectives. The VOO programme allows us to gain and act on customers feedback
against crucial stages of their exporience with us, The programme incorparates both inteznal
custorner insights and external research to help shape customer-led decision making at a senjor
tovel in the business, it allews us to be agik in bow we approach the ever-changing market and

provides invaluable continuous improvement insights which feads into nprovement initiatives.

A key element of the VOC programme is to balance imernal and external insights, understand
our own custemer needs against the market and to anticipate the evohrtion in our praducts and
services to meet the changing necds of our customers. This allows us to sculpt the future of the

Bruntweoid experience and stay competitive in the market,

Qur Customer Retationshin Management {CRM) tool, Salesforee, is nused as a central source of
insights capfure, With every customer interaction stored against the specific customer account,
this alhows us 1o foster and strengthen relationships with our custamers through having deeper,

richer conversations,

The VOC incfudes:

-Automated and manual teedback loops

-Deep dives into specific topics or markat trends
~Mystery shopping and fguality assurante checks
-Customer forums & panels

-Cystomer and colleague interviews

The Board reviews and approves the Group’s Supplier Maxagement policy on an aanual basis.
The Board coninuoutly assesses the priprities of those we do business with, reflecied in one of
our underlying values *Be brilliant to work with', We act with integrity, respect and a passion

for collaboration, as we know the greatest ovicomes henefit everyone.

As a business, we can only help to create thriving cities if we deliver sustainable and

enviranmentally-conscious spaces that suppori the wellbeing of our customers, communities

and colleagues, That's why we are embedding a culture of inability ecross all our ways of
waorking in order 1 1fmit our impact on global warming and mitigate the eflects of ciimate

changs.

in QOctober 2018, Bruntwood became the first comunercial property parirer fo sign the
UKGBCs Advancing Net Zero commiiment, dedicating ourselves to operating et net ere
carbon by 2030. To further demonstrate our support for a more sustzinable built envirottment,

we are now a founding signatory to the WGBCs Net Zern Carbon Buiidings Commitment,

PIEAZING 16 take Jitcicased aclion oi oOr embaiied CATHON entissIons A5 WE. |, -
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(d} The impact of the company’s operations
on the comeunity apd cnvironment

{continued)

Aleng with these commitments, we wilk alsn be mjvocating olhers wa da tie same by helping our
customers and communities become more aware of their carhon emissions, and supporting them

to take aciion.

Working with the Carben Trust, we have developed our own science bared tarpets, creating &
*carbon budget’ for the business to support the Paris Agrcement global targel ol restricting glohat

warming to 1,5°C above pre-industrial levels.

We pledged that all arcas under our direet control - this means our common parls, our awn

offices and our vehicle teel - will operate at net zero carbon by 2030,

While our primary focus has been on our owh emissions and what we ean do to reduce these to
reach our net zere carben frrgels, we're also setting tarpels regarding our water, waste and
energy usage to further embed sustainable nperations [nto our business, To help us understand
moz¢ aboul these wider impacts, we’ve recently completed an analysis of our “Scope 37
emigsions and they make up around 96% of par io1al Footprint, se this will be a significant foens

for us going forwards.

The Bruntwood Group partners wilh ambitious environmental, arts and culiwral organisations
that make a positive change to our communities. Partnerships include bluedot, Grand Unian,
Leeds International Festival, TnnovateHer and Enterprise Nation,

{e) The desirability of the company
maintaining & reputation for high slandards

of business conduct

The reputation of the company and maimtaining high standards of business conduct are under-
pinned by the Group’s stralegy. One of the Group’s values ia being brillient to work with, for

customers, collcagues and suppliers.

The Group has ambitions targets for the warkforce with & good platform to build from; a gender
pay gap of 10% and 40% of the Board being women, The Group launched its Diversily gnd
Inclusion stratepy in 2019, and has a clear programme undervay to support the achievement of

ihe Diversity and Inclusion tarpets.

(f) The need to act fairly as between

members of the company.

‘The Group’s activities are directed through a single unified corporate management and conirol
structure which is cun by the board of Directors (the “Group Board™). The Giroup Board is
responsible for designing and managing the strategic direetion of the Bruntwood SeiTech Group,
major funding and acquisition decisions and conirolling the corporate management and
opetational stracture of the Group. The Group Board containg C-Suite executives form the

SciTech Group, and members from both joint venture partners.
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REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
Financial hightigbts Tor the year ended 3D September 2022 are:

- Profit before tax £114.0m (2021: £17.lm}

- Nel assel increase of 36.7% to £319.dm (2021 £233.6m)
- Tumnover up 38.6% to £71.7m (2021: £5E.8m)

- Gearing at 33% (2021: 36%)

Bruntwood SciTech continued its strong performance in the year, with a humber of notable bighlights, including the acquisition of Glasgow's iconic Met
“Tower, seeing the company make its first investment in Scotland. Bruntwood SciTech acquired the site in day for £16.2m and immediately anziounced a
£60m investinen to iransform it into a nesy hub for fech and digiial businesses in the heart of the Glasgow Cily Jnanovalion District. Plans will see the 14
storey, Grade B listed, old City of Glasgow College buiiding redeveloped into a 113,000 sq fi hub for university spinouts, startups, scaleups, and large tech
businesses to co-locate together, whilst 10 the raar of the site an interconnecting new building will be constructed to scale the tech cluster even further,

Consultation events have bzen heid with enabling wotks due 1o commence from January 2023

It was niso the year that Bruntwood SciTech's prowih in Manchester saw the completion of the second phase of Manchesier Seience Park’s masierplan. The
five-storey, 91,000 sq ft developiment of Base slarted in Decamber 2020 at the height of the pandemic and completed only & few weeks afler its pre-pandemic
predicted completion date, one of the firsl Giovernment supported Getting Building Fund “shovel-ready” projects to do so. Purpose-built for companies
working in high grewth Industey 4.0 tech and offering dzdicated prototyping makerspace, and those training the next generation ol highly skilted, specialist
talent to support such businssses, Base will be home to companies working in areas such as tow carbon, light manufacturing, computer and energy
technolopy, gaming, and animation. The campns alse saw a tefurbishment of Skelton House to create a 43,000 sq i global hnb For international molecuiar
diagnostics group Yourgene Health, a long standing cusiomer who significantly expanded its prescace in Manchester following sugeess duting the COVID-
19 pandemio whera they developed and scaled their own PCR antigen testing method. In their tine as a customer at both Manchester Seience Park and

Citylabs they have grown from a team of two through to the 200 slrong business it is today.

At Brunhwood SciTech’s other Manchester campuses, Circle Square has continved to prove popular with startups and sealeups such as leading NFT
marketplace KnownOrigin, acquited this year by eBay, and is now the go-te home for high growth businesses within the digital knowledge economy wanting
t> aecess the oity's innovation district. Renewable electricity provider Octopus Energy Group secured 40,000 sq ft workspace 10 create their new hase and
390 new jobs in Manchestar, whilst America’s Mo, 1 TV streaming platform Roku completed on 120,000 sq ft in No. |, the fargest ever inward investor deal

for the city. With demand cantinuing far the neighbourbood, plans have been announced for N3 Circle Square which will see 254,000 sq fi office and retail

space constructed s well as a new landscaped green space opposite Symphony Park. The £87m development was subimitted and ived planning consent in
this year and vwill begin consiruction in Spring 2023, It js intended to achieve Net Zere embodied carbon during sonstruction, BREEAM Excelient staius, a
NABERS 5 Star rating and an EPC A rmating once operational.

Singe the formation of the £1.5bn 10 Manchester Joint Venture with the University of Manchester announced in the summer of 2021, a preat desl of work
has been undertaken to begin to bring the vision (o reality. Over the course of this year a number of delivery stralegies have been developed including a key
piece of work prepacing a masterplan for the districr. The masterplan wilk show how it will become an exemplar in inclusive innovation recognising the
heritege of the site, planning for quality and sustainable public realm, and served by first class infrastructure. The masterplan will be subject 1o a consuliation

period early in 2023,

This year savy a nuunber of new partnerships form in Manchester and Birmingham. The High Value Manufacturing Catapuh selected Innovation Birmingham
as its HQ and opened a NorthWest nodal hub at Circle Square in addition to its cxisting site at Liverpoo) Science Pack. HYMC and two of (s founding
centies, Lhe Centee for Process and Tanovation (CPT) and the Manufacturing Technology Cenire nre now located at multiple Bruntweod SciTech campuses to
access an inierconnecled, industry-leading ecosystem across the UK. Bruntwood SciTech launched a new fund in parinership with Greater Manchester
Combined Apthority, Cheshire and Warrington LEP and Praetura Ventures. The £20m GMC Life Sciences Fund is to bolster the region’s Aourishing life

sciences sector, support innovatian, create more skilled jobs, and help busi to expand internalionally. The company also set up a new partnership on its
Serendip corporale innovation challenge programime with BNP Paribas Personal Finance and SuperTech West Midlands te offer 10 SMEs the opporunity lo
tackle three FinTech innovation chal'enges and gain new markel and mentorship aceess,
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In Birmingham, development at the Innovation Birmingham campus has progressed at pace. Construction o0 Birmingham’s first *smart-enabled” building in the
heart of the Knowledge Quarter, the £33m, 120,000 sq ft Enterprise Wharf reached its ‘topping out' milestone in March. When it opens zarly next year, it wilt
provide much needed grow-on and expansion space for larger digital and tech husinesses, helping to aturact significant inward invesiment to the region. The
campus also played an fmportant role during the Commonwealth Games, hosting delegations from across the world keen to access the West Midlands”
burgeoning tech and digital sector, and irs partnership with the West Midlands Growth Company offered fully funded UK market entry and sofi-landing suppost

for 30 innovative Foreign Direct Investor (FD1) companies to be based al knaovation Birmingham in the run up 1o and 12 months fol.owing tire Games,

Acyoss the city, Bruntweod SeiTech’s joint vendure partnesship with the University ol Birmingham to develop a new 10 acre life sciences campus for the
Midlands also continued 1o develop and evolve at pace, The first phase of the £210m Birmingham Health Innovation Campas and ifs new healthcare
technologies cluster, No,] BHIC, marked its “tapping out” in Septomber. Due te complete in September 2023 the 133,000 sq il Ne.] BHIC has alrcady heen
confirmed to be the fituce bome of the University of Birmingham's Precision Health Technologies Accelerator (PHTA) and Birmingham Precision Medicine

Centre which will provide opportunities for pioncering R&ID starups to colecate and collaborate with scele up and larger life soience busincsses.

Alderley Pack, the UK 's largest sinple-site life sciences campus, completed and launched 86,000 sq ft of lab space in a £20m redevelopment ol existing space (o
create high-specification biology and chemistry containment level two (CL2) labs. The redevelopment forms part of the Park’s £247m masterplan, which this
yer also saw planniny sabmitied for an additional 200,000 sq & of speuialist Ci.2 lab and office space, bringing two new buildings to the campus, the first new
build commercial spaces 1o be deliverad since acquiring the site in 2014, Alderley Park continues 1o oifer best-in-class life science and fech facilities to support
such businesses and this year saw a number of exciting new companies relocate or expand al the Park. Leading game ert studic Airship Interactive announced
their new HQ in 15,000 sq & at Glasshiouse and will create 200 jobs in the next three years, multi-national cloud selutions provider SAP selecied Glasshouse as
its North of Bngiand hub for over 100 employees, and global cell and gene therapy business Charles River chose 17,000 sq & for their highly specialist Iab space

in Mereside. These ies are col i alongside more than 250 businesses now based at 1he Park, such as Sai Life Sciences, ane of the faslest growing

global contract research, development and manufactaring organisations, who this year expanded with a four-fold increase in their space requiremess from
5,000 10 20,000 5q Q. Alderley Park continued 1o supno the fight against Covid-19 and during the UK Government's mass Covid-19 PCR testing programme

the Alderley Park Lighthouse Lab processed over 23 million PCR test samples and trained over 1,000 early career scientists,

In Leeds, support for one of the UK's fastest growing tech sectors continued 1o gain momentum at Platform, Tn March, Bruntwood SeiTech became a pariner
and supported LegalTech in Leeds 1o bring together the legal and dipital sectors in the Leeds City Region and help drive digitai adoption, improve access to
legp! services, and supporl entreprenewrs seeking to work in LegalTech. A Female Founders Incubator programme was launched lo suppon early stape fech
famale founders with mentoring from successfil founders and CEOs, professional support across & range of disciplines and desk space provided in the city's

dedicaled specialist startup Tech Hub. A Skills Marketplace elso ran to help companies find tech talent of the future, and upskill existing talent.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

- Deliver a sustainable net worth growth over time, vis a combination of both income and capital refurns, whilst generating positive cash flows for reinvesiment
and assel growth. Met worth for 2022 is £319.4m a 36, 7% increase on 2021,

- Maintain aporopriate levels of gearing and net debt, whilst detivering growth within the Group. Gearing stood at 33% in 2622, comparable to 36% in 2021.
Net debt was £293m compared to £239m.

- Improve relationships with customers and strive for increases in net premoter scores. Our Bruntwoad Works net promoter score {NPS) at year cnd was +36,
deemed ‘very good” in the B2B sector. We are moving towards a soft BPS score in the future, capturing this KPT at each stage of our customer joutney,

- Attract end retain the best employees, encouraging training, develepment and career progression.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The twost significant extermal risk eucently facing the Group, impacting cusiomers, colleagues and suppliors, is the conflict whick continzes fallowing the
Russian tnvasion of Ukraive, which has contributed 10 significent macro - economic velatility and uacertainty with high levels of inflation and increasing

interest rates curzently being cxperienced. The Group continues lo monitor these situations closely.

More specifically the Group is alfected by ch. in i in the investment and occupiet markats in which it operates. The primary factoss ara the Tevel
of customer dewand for commercial properdy (which in furn is dependant on the ceonomic suceess of the city regions) which dictawes oceupancy and rental
levels, the investor demand for properly which diclajes the value put an those rental levels and the supply of property which is a fanction of the Tevel of
developinent activity. In turmn, these micro factars are impacied by the macro factors in the wider esonemy, particularly levels of GDP, inflation and interesl rale

levels,

The ditectars consider the Group's concentration of offices in strtegic city regions to be onc of its key sirenpths. The Ciroup has 46 years of focused experience
within this market that allows it to react quickly 1o changing market conditions and customer needs, The directors betieve that the scale of the business, its
Mexible approach to cuslomers, and enhanced service offer provides a competitive advantage nod enables the Group (o pre-actively mitigate these risks. With an
ambitious pian to grow the business il remains importan| thal the Group continues with its policy of {nvesting io 11z people and systems and eucouraging

inavation ead creativity in its approach.

As with any property company that is substantially debt financed the directors consider ete of the key financial risks 10 be the ability of the Group to mest the
cavenant requirements of all borrowing facilities, and to successfillly refinance botrowing facilitics 2l thelr maturity date. The directors regularly review

compliance with the covenants and the Group is proud that it has not breached any fibancial covenant in its 46 year history. The Groop bave modelled the

impacl or foan s of reduced i and significan! decreases in valuations of properlics. There are no covenant breaches Forecast.

APFROVED AND SIGNED OGN BEHALT OF THE BOARID;

C. G Ogleshy - Hrecior 31 January 2023
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

For the Year Ended 30 September 2022
The directors present their annsal report on the affairs of the Group, Lopelher wilh the finanzial statemeants and auditor’s report, for the year eaded 30 September
2022,

GOING CONCERN

The directors have assessed be impact of the current uncertainty on all aspects of the business, focussing specifically on operations ond casiflows of the Group 1o
cover the period of not {ess than 12 months from the date of the signing of these financial statements. This stress-testing included assessing the levels of cash and
aveilable funce within the Group assuming a reduction in tumover on the bazsis of customer default or payment plans, reduced lettings and increased vacations at
break and expicy, This has been offset by factoring in identified savings in operalional expenditure, end a raview and possible cuts of uncommitled capital

expendilure where necessary.

The directors have alse considered the ongoing availability of Fnance by modelling the émpact on lean covenants of reduced income and significant decreases in

valuations of properties. Even considering downside scenarios there are no covenant breaches forecast.

Based on reviewing these forecasis and sensilivities the directors have concluded that the Group is a going concern and sccordingly have prepared tie financiat

statements on this basis. Further details regerding the adoplion of the going concern basis can be fourd in note | of the financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

We continue to monitor impact of the Russian invasion al Ukraine o macro-economic volatility.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose it te a aumber of financial risks including credit risk, cash Row risk and liquidity risk. The use of financial darivatives is governed
by tha Group's policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives to manage these risks. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes,

i) Cosh flow risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates. Exposure to interest rate risk is managed in bve ways, firstly by

securing low borrowing marging end secondly by hedging the Group's variable interesl rate exposure.

iy Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables, and investments.

The Group's eredit risk is primatily atiributable to its trade receivables. The amoustls presenfed in the balance slhieet are net of allowances For duubtful receivables.
An allowanee for impairment is made where there s an idenlified loss event which, hased an previous experience, is svidence ol a reduction in Lhe recovarability

of the cast: flaws. ‘

The credil risk on liquid furds and derivative fivancial instruments is limited because lhe coumerparties are banks with high ceedit-ratings assigned by

internatiosal credit-raling agensies,
The Group has ne significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.
i} Liquiclity risk

In order to mainlain liquidity 10 ensuse that sufficiznt funds are available for ongeing operations and future developments, the Group uses a mixture of jong-lerm

and shorl-tem debt finance.
Further details regarding Eiquidity risk can he found in the Strategic Repert on pages 4 10 1.

DIVIDENDS
No dividends have been paid or propesed for the year ended 30 September 2022 (2021: £nil).
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PIRECTORS
“The directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 Cotober 2021 to the date of this roport.
C Oglesby
K Lawior
P Crowther
K MacKay
B Topps

Dther chenges in dirsetors holding office ate os follows;
D Hardinan - resigned 31 December 2021
T Renn - resipned 15 October 2021

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES
The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benofit of its divectors and the divectrars of its subsidiaries which were made dusing

the year and rematn in force at the date of this repori.

DISABLED EMPLOYEES

Applications for employment by disabled persans are always fully considered, bearing in mind the abilitics of the applicant coneerned, In the event of’ membars of
sta{f becoming disabicd every effort is made 1p ensuro that their employment with the Group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. 1t is the policy of
the Group and the Cammpany that the training, career develppment and promation of disabled persons should, as far as passible, be ideniical fo that of other

employees.

EMPLOYLES
The group employed an averape of 71 people during the year eaded 30 September 2022 (2021: 60), Further details of employment casts cin be found in the notes

to the financial statements.

All employees are eligible to join the Group’s contributery pension scheme. The Group's ali employes share ownership scheme is open to all employees who
have completed one year of employment, Each year the company sels aside reserves out of profits to meet both these {iabilities and those of the directors’ share

option scheme and at 30 Saptember 2022 the cumulative value amounted to £0.6m (2021: £0.3m).

HEALTH AND SATETY
Aceoss the Group a program of continuous improvement is impiemented ta reduce health and safety risks in all buildings on a prioritised basis to ensice cost

effective and pragmatic tisk management. There is a rolling program of required statutory i ions and risk to ensure safe buildings for our

P

customers, employess, contractors and vigitars, All employees teceive lailored heaith and safery training to undertake their role 1o minimise the tisk of adverss
health effects or injury. The reporiing of all incidents including near-misses and hazard idestification is encouraged in order to learn lessons wherever
possible. Despite the wide runge of refuchisfiment, develepment and Facilities inanagement activities uadertaken by Bruntwood and its contractors there bave been

no Prohibition or Improvement Notices {ssued during the year by the Health & Safety Executive.

ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING

We have reported on all sources of GHG cinissions and enerpgy usapge as required under The Large and Medium-Sized Companics and Groups {Accounts and
Reports) Repniations 2008 as amended, The GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting aad Reporting Standard has heen used throughout and we have used our
monthly billing data (from both fiscal and submetered supplies) to coilate the dat for this zeport, Emissions factors have been mken from the 2021 UK

Government Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

The organisational boundary ircludes all of the office space that Bruntwood's own staff occupy, plus the common areas of all of our buildings. The let-able aress

are excluded wheilier or nol the sites are fully occupied. Bruntwood s vehicle fleet (whether leased or owned) is included within the organisotional boundary.

12



BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
For the Vear Ended 30 September 2022

GHG emisslons and encrgy usnge

GHG emissions and enerpy usage data

Mandatory Information For period ¥ Octoher 2021 to 30 For pecicd | October 2020 0 30
¥ September 2022 September 2021

Tola! annual gas consumiption foc combustion purposes in kWh 4,509,290 3,990,611

Total auniuz! pacchased electricily consumptian in kWh 8,643,660 (0,357,295

Emissions from combustion of fuel for heat in 1CO2e (Scape 1 now

apportioned) 823 731

Emissions from combustion of fuel for transport purposes in tCO2¢

{Scope 1) - N

Process/Fugitive Emissions in tCO2e {Scope () P38 285

Emissions from purchased clectricity (Scope 2) 1,672 1897

Total gross C02¢ based on above 2,633 2913

Area in SQM {common parts) 101,149 74,552

[ntensity ratio: chosen ration is tCO2e per M2 0.026 0.039

The intensity ratio chosen was tCO2e per metre squared. This is the recognised intensity ratio for our sector and allows for consistent measurement over time. It
shoutd be noted that our portfolio includes both peneral office space and laboratory/R&D facilities and as such whole building intensities vary preatly. ‘The
stgnificant reduction in emissions is largely driven by an increase in area and we expect to see this nornalise as occupancy (padicularly in new developinents)

increases.

Tn 2018, Brunltwood became the first property company in the UK 10 sigh up to the UK Green Building Council's Met Zero Carbon commitment.Since then, we've
heen improving owr buildings, adapting our devclopment approach and creating policies, procedures and guidance to help us reach thal goai. We reafTirmed our
commilment to & nct zero fuluns in 2021, becoming & founder signatory to {he World Green Building Council's Net Zero Carbost Buildings Commitment and
signing wp to the Utiited Nations-backed global campaign, Race la Zero. We've also recently published aue Net Zere Pathway which sets out our delivery

appreach and the measurement approach we will use 1o make surc we remain on track.

Part of this wark ineluded completing a full building efficiency audit acrass our entire portfolio (over 100 huildings) to develop an understanding of cur zxisting
builditigs and the interventions needed to make them more energy efficient, with the goal of all of our buildings reaching net zere by 2050, as wall as meeting

legislative requirements sich ag the Miné 1 Energy Efficiency Standards - which requires an EPC B rating by 2030, This propramme will ixflusnee building-

level initiatives, se each huildinp kas a bespake net zera plan. It should also position us zhead of additiona. future regulations such as these that arise from the

Future Bulidings Standand consultation.

Similarly, in order to help decarbonise our energy supply, Bruntwood has purchased an industcy-first 42.4% share in Kirk Hill wind famm. That means that from
the end of 2023, the majorily of the power that \we need te operate our own offices and comenon spaces will be supplied by renewable energy - a huge milestone in

getting us towards our net zero goals.

We can also new see some of our sustainable development plans starting to materialise and in Spring we opened BASE, our first building designed to operate at
Net Zero Carbon acress communat areas, Sustainabilily measures at the building include an A-rated EPC, 704m2 of PV solar power, a hybrid heating and cooling
system with a significant reduction in refrigerant pases, and 360m?2 of recycled carpel which has been canverted into alternative flooring finishes. On the
refurbishment side, we also announced (heacquisition of Mel Tower in Glasgow which is new being redeveloped inlo world-class office space, which is net zero
carbon ins operation, and purpose-built to provide unrivalled support to Glasgow's growing cluster of digital and tech businesses, as well as tech companies

looking to establish hemselves in the city.

QOther notable highlights included announcing oir parnership with Liftshare who are the UK's leading car share provider. Their platform connects drivers and
passengers via an app lo provide a more sustaiitable way to trave! by reducing the number of cars on the road; recciving plarning approval to redevelop the Grade
1t listed Pall Mall in the heart of Manchester city centre. Pall Mall will be Manchester's first workspace aimed at the ‘consciously minded® and bucome & hame for
businesses tha¢ demonstrate strong Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) credentials; and becoming a partner in the UKGBCs Physical Risk Labs
Project. Understanding Ue risk that climate change poses Lo our business is essential 1o our role as a responsible investor, developer and asset manager, so will an

increasing focus for our business.
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Pall Mall will be Manchester's first workspace aimed at the ‘consciously minded’ and become a home for businesses that demonstrate sirong Environmental,
Social and Governance {E3G) credentials, and becoming a partner in the UKGBCs Physical Risk Lahs Project. Understanding the risk that climats change poses

to aur buginess is essential 1o vur role us 1 responsible investor, developer and asset mauager, so will ag increasing focus for our business.

AUDITOR
Each of the direciors at the date of approval of this repont conlinns that

(¥) so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware; and

(i} the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a directar 1o make themselves aware of any relevant audit information anu to establish

that the company's auditor is aware of that infonnation,
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accardance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Aet 2006, Deloitte LLP has ftdicated its

willingness to be reappointed for atother tern and appropriate arrangements have been put in place for thein to be deemed reappoinled as auditor in the absence
of an Annual General Mezsting.

APPROVED AND SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

Cn gy

£ G Oglesby - Director 3i January 2023
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BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

The direclors are responsible For preparing the Annual Reposl and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Cotnpany Jaw requires the directors to prepare financial stalements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have elecied to pregare the financial

slatements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable faw), including
FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”. Usder company law the dircctors must not approve the financial

statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the siate of affairs of (he company and of the profil or loss of the company for that

period, In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

seleot suitable acepunting poticies and ther apply them consistently;

make judmments and accnnniing estimaies [hat ave reasonable and prudent;

staie whether applicable UK Accouting Standards have been followed, subject te any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial siatements,
and

prepace the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is wappropriate to presume that the company wili continue in business.

The ditectors are responsible for keening adequale accounting records Lhat are sufficient 10 show and explain the company's transaciions and disclose with

reasonable accuracy at any time the financial poshion of the company and enable them to onsure that the financial stateinents comply with the Companies Act

2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and

other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the insintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company’s website. Legistation in the

United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may difTer from legislation in other jurisdictions.



[NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OFF BRUNTWOOD SCEENCE LIMITED

REPORT ON TIIE AUDIT OF TTIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

In cur opiniot the financial statemenis of Bruntwond Science Limited {ihe 'parent company’) &nd its subsidiaries (the "group’):

v give a true and fair view of the sinte of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 30 September 2022 and of the group's profit for the year then
ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordancs with United Kingdom Generally Accepied A ing Practice, including Financial Repodting Standard 102 “The

Financial Reporting Standard appiicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”; and

¢+ have baen prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise; the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated and parent company balance sheets, the

consolidated and pareat company statements of changes it equity, he consolidated cash flow statement and the related rotes { to 24.

The financial reponing framework that has been apptied in their preparation is applicable law and Uaited Kingdom Accounting Standards, iuctuding Financial
Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” {United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting

Practice).

Basis for gpinion
We conducted our andit in accordance with Internatisnal Standeeds on Auditing {UK) (15As (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards

are further deseribed i the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements sectian of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent companty in accordance with the elhical requirements that are relevant to our andit of the financial statements in
the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (the 'FRC's') Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordunce with

these requirements. We believe thal the audit evidence we have obtnined is sufficieni and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion.

Canclusions relating to going concern

In anditing the tinancial staiements, we have concluded that the directoss’ use of the geing concem basiz of accounling in the premcation of the financiaf

ements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not idenlified any matctial uncertaintics reiating o events or conditions that, individuatly or collectively, may casi
significant doubt on the grour's and parenl company’s abilily to continue 2s a going coscem for a peried of at least twelve months from when the financial

statements are aulhorised for issuc,

Our evaluation of the directars’ assessment of the group’s and parent campany’s ability to adopt the going eoncern basis of accounting included:

* A roview of the cashi flaw forecasis prepared by the Directors;

» Challenge of the assmnptions used in thy forecasis through performing sensitivity avalysis around future profitability and cash inflows as well as around
covenant hcad room;

+  Tusting of clerical accuracy of those forecasts and an assessiment of the historieal acouracy of forecasis prepared by manaperment through comparison of actual

results,

Qur responsibilitios and the respoasibilities of the directots with respect 16 going concern are described in the relevant ssetions of this report,

Other informaiion
The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual repont. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the financial statemems and our auditor's report thereon, Our opinion on the financial statements does noi cover the other information and,

except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our repost, we do not express any form of assurance conclusiot thereon.

ot

Our responsibility is to read the other inforation end, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materally f istent with the fi
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or atherwise appears to be materially missiated. If we identify such material inconsistercies or apparent maierial

rerigsl , we are required to dotsrinine whether there is a materfal mi t in the 1 ial staioments ot & material missiatemment of the other

mnformation. If, based on the work we have perfonmed, we conclude that there is o material misstatement of this other inforation, we are required to report that

fact,

We have nothing te report in respeel of these matters.
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Reaponslbilities of divectors
As explained manre firlty in the directors” responsibilities statement, the direetors 2re cesponsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfizd that they give a true and fair viey, and for such internal control as the directors detenine is necessary to enable the prepacation of financial statements

that are free from materiat misstalement, whether due to fraud or crror.

la preparing the linzncial slatements, the direclors are responsible for assessing the group’s and {he parent company's ability to continue a3 a going conceen,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concerr and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group

or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor's regponyibilities for the audit of the financlal statements

Our objectives ase [o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whola are frae from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issie an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordancs with TSAs (UKD will 2hways detect a material misstatement when i1 exisis. Misstaiements can arise from fraud or error and are cansidered matenal 1t,

individually or in the aggregale, they could reasonably be expected (o influence the ecoromic decisions of users taken un (he basis of these financial stalements,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is Jocated on the FRC's website at: nwyw, fre. org uk/auditorsresponsibilitics.

This description forms part of oar auditor’s report.

Extent to witich the audit was considered capable of defecting ivregularitics, including fraud
Trregularities, including fraud, arc instances of non-complinnee with lasws and regulations, We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above,
1o detec! material misstatements io cespect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent tu whick our procedres are capable of detecting irreguiarities, including

fraud is detarled below.

We considered the nature of the group's industry and its control eavironment, and reviewed the group's decumentation of their poiicias and procedures relating to

fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the nsks of irregulacities,

We obtained an understanding of the lega! and repulatory framework that the group operates in, and identifizd the key laws and regulations that:

+ had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, These included UK Companics Acl, tax legislation,
and

+ do nol have a direni effect on the financizl statements but compliance with which may be fundamental ta the group's ability to aperate or to avoid a material

penalty. These included building repulations and environmental regulations.

We discussed among the audit engagement leam including relevant intemal specialists such as tax, valuations, IT, and industry speoialists regarding the

oppoTtunitics and incentives that may cxist within the orgarisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the abavs, we identified Lhe greatest potential for fraud in (he following area, and our specific procedures performed (o address it are

deseribed helow:

+ valuation of investment property, We challenge the principal assamptions used to derive the fair viue through a number of procedures, These include the
review of equivalent yields against markst rates, challenge of methonlogy by RICS certified internal experts and substantive testing of commitied rent

receivable,

[n common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond Lo the risk of gement override. In addressing the
risk of Fraud through management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements
made in naking accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that are ususuzl or

oulside the normai course of busincss.

[n addition to the above, our procedures to respond Lo the risks identified included the following:
v reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting decnmentation 10 assess compliance with provisions of relevant laws and repulations
described as having a dircet effect on the financial statements;

+ performing analytical pracedures 1o identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicatc risks of materia! misstatement due to fraud;

enquiring of managensent and in-house / external legal counss) concerning actual and potentiaf litigation and claims, asd instances of non-complinnce with
lasvs and regulations; and

+ reading minutes of meatings of those charged with governance.
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Repaort on ather tegal and regulatory requirementy

Opinions on other matiers prescribed by the Compnnies Act 2006

Tn our opinicn, based on the wark udertaken in the course of the audit;

* the information given in the sirategic repect and the dircetors’ report for the financial year for which the financial siatements are prepared is consisient with the
finaucizl statements are preparcd is consistent with the financial statetnents; and

+ the strategic repert and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with the applicable legal requirements

T the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company aud their envirotiment obiained in tae course of the audil, we have not

identified any material misstalements in the stralegic repon or the directors” report.

Watiers an which we sre required fo report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are raquired to report in respect of the fellowing maters if, in our opiniot:

+  adequale accounting records have not been kept by the parcit company, or relurns adequate for our andii have not been received from brauches not vistled by
us; or

« the parent company financial statements are aol in agreement with the accountingt records and retums; or

+  certein disclosures of directors’ remuneration spesified by law are not mede; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit.
We have nothing {o report in respect of these matters,

Use of cur veport

This repart fs made solely o ihe company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapier 3 of Part 16 of the Companics Act 2006, Qur audit work has been
undertakers 5o that we might state 1o the compaity’s members those matters we are required 1o state lo them in an auditor's report and for no other parpose. To the
fultest extent permitted by kav, we do net accepl or assume responsibility 4o anyone ather than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audil

work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

?(L.h‘\ Qa&w«t-

Jonnthan Dodworth (Seaior Statotory Awiitor)
for and on beteif of Deloitte LLP

Slatutory Auditer

Rirmingham

United Kingdorm

31 January 2023




BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND 1.0SS ACCOUNT
Far the Year Ended 30 Septemnber 2022

2022 2021
Note £000 £000
TURNOVER 3 71,728 51,768
Cast of sales (54,942} (39,088)
GROSS PROFIT 16,786 12,680
Adminisirative expenses (15,408) {12,595)
OPERATING PROTIT 1,288 35
Share of results of joint venrures / associates 59 (13)
Gain on revatuation of invesiment property 117,036 22,836
Gaoin on interest rmie derivatives 9,159 939
Exceptional loss 4 (4,351} {66}
PROTIT BEFORE INTEREST AN} TAX 123,191 23,781
Net intersst payable 7 (9,167) {6,681}
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 114,024 17,100
Tax on profit . 8 (28,249) (12,771}
PROTFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 85,775 4,329
Total comprehensive income for the period sitibwtable to
Non- controlling interest 17,445 {1,125
Equity shareholders of the company 68,330 5,458
85,775 3,379

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

All of the above relale to centinuing operations.

There aro no items of other eomprehensive inceme in (he current or prior yeac and therefore no separate stalement of comprehensive income has been presented.



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEEF
As at 30 September 2022

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible asseis

Fixed asse investments
- Investtucat jn Joint Ventures / Associates
- Other investments

CURRENT ASSETS

Debtors: amounts receivable within one year
Debtors: amounts receivable after more than one year
Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one year

NET CURRENT LIABTLITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
CREDITORS: amounts Talling due after more than one year
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

WNET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Catled up share capital

Profit and loss account

SHAREHOILDERS! FUNDS

NON CONTROLLING INTEREST

TOTAL CAPITAL EMPLOYED

Thie financial statensents of Bruntsvood Seience Limited, corpany number 7737629, were approved by the Board of Direclors on

3] January 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

G G Ogleshy - Divector

Note

4
12

i3

12
9

20

BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

2022
£000

880,481
26
5,367
885,894
25,245
22,494
20,837
68,576

(275.116)

(206,540)

579,354
(299,459)

(60,543)

319,352

131,044
138,350

269,194

40,958

319,352

2021
£000

669,521
(13}
4,531
674,039
27,903
6,959
5,108
39,570

(203,191)

{163,221)

510,818
(244,947

(32,294}

233,577
LA

131,044
70,020

201 064

32,513

233,517

Xt



COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 Scptember 2022

FIXED ASSETS

Fixed asset investiments
- Investment in Subsidiaries
- Loans to Group Undertakings
= Other investments

CURRENT ASSETS

Dreblurs

Debiors: amounts receivable after more than one year
Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS: amounts falling dse within one year

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS LSS CORRENT LIABILITIES

CREDITORS: amounts falliug due after mace than oae year

NET ASSETS

CAPTTAL AND RESERVES
Called up shase capital
Profit and loss account

SUAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

The profit for the financiat year in the financial statements of the parent company was £1,000 (2021 £:11).

The financial statements ol Bruntwond Scieace Limited, company number 07737629, were approved by the Board of Direclors on

31 January 2023 and were signed on iis behalfhy:

C G Oglesby - Director

Note

13
13

19
19

BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

2022
£000

22,288
271,054
960
294,302
278,951
174

1
279,126

{166,771)

112,355
406,657

(278,736)

127,921

131,044
(3.123)

127,921

2021
£000

22,288
229,410
960
252,658
243,540
174

30

243 744

(127.150)

116,59¢
369,252

(241,332)

12790

131,044
(3,124

127,920

21



CONSOQOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 September 2022

At1 October 2020

Profit/(fossj for the financial year

Tofal compreliensive (¢x pense)/incorie
A 30 September 2021

Profit for the financial year

Tofn] esmprehensive income

At 30 September 2022

BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

Cajled up Non-
share Frofit and controtling Total
capital less account interest equity
£000 £000 £000 £000
131,044 4,562 33,642 219,248
- 5458 (1,125} 4329
- 3,458 (1,129 4,329
131,044 70,020 32,813 233,577
- 68330 17,445 85,775
- 68,330 17,445 45,775
131,044 138,350 49,958 319,352

2



COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 September 2022

At 1 October 2020

Resnlis for the financial year
Tatal comprehensive income
At 30 September 2021
Profit for the financial year
Tstal comprehensive incone

At 30 September 2022

BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

Calied up

share Profil and ‘Fotai
capitat loss acgounl equily
£000 £000 080
131,044 3,124) 127,920
131,044 (3, 124) 127,920

- 1 1

z i Ty

131,044 (3,123) 127,921

23




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the Year Eoded 30 September 2022

Cnsh Mows from/{nsed in) operating nctivitics
Taxation paid
Net eash generated from operating netivities

Cnsh flows from/(used in) investing wetivities
Tistributions from investments

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Acquisition of associate

Purchase of invesiments

T¥isposal of listed investment/ invesmint properties
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash MNows (uscd in)/from financing activities
Net interest paid

Prawdown of bank loans

Drawdown of other jcans

Repaymeat of other toans

Expenses incurred on lonns

Grant incanse received

Net cash generated from fipancing activitizg

Wet increase/ (decrease) in cash amd ensh equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivatents at end of year

Note

21

BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

2022
£009

50,932
(160)

50,772

129
£109,258)

(836)
6,715

(103,250

{7,828)
36,000
32,097

5,108

20,837

2021
£000

58,579
{1,041)
57,538

(104,830)
(2,000)
(549)
2434

(104,945)

(5,343)
87,190

(24,436)
(2,386)
8,642
43,467
(3,940)
9,048

5,108
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BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Yenr Ended 30 September 2022

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Geneval luformation and hasis of accounting

‘The principal aceounting pelicies adopted are described below. They have all been applied consisiently throughout the current and preceding year.

Bruntwood Science Limited {the company) is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act. The address of the company's registered

office is shown on page |

The prineipal activities of the company and its subsidiasics {legether the group) and (he natuce of the group's operations are set out in the Stratepic Report on

pages 4 to 10,
The company (s a private company Hinited by shares and is registzced in England.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include cerrain items at fair value, and in accordance with Financial

Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102} issued by the Financial Reporting Coungil.

Bruntwood Seience Limited meets the definition of a qualifying emtity under FRS 102 and has therefore 1aken advattage of the disclosute exemptions available
10 it in respect of is separate financial statements, which are presented alongside the consolidaled financial statements. Exemptions have been taken in relation to

the presentafion of a cash flow.,

The functional currency of Lhe company is considered 10 be pounds sterling because that is the ourrency of the primacy economic eavirpnment in which the

company operates. The consolidated fisancial sfatetnents are also presented in pounds stering.

Golng concern
‘Ihe group's business aclivities, logether with the factors likely to affect its fulure development, performance and posilion are set oot in the Strategic Report on
pages 4 to 10. The Strategic Repont describes the financial position of the group; its borrowing facilities; its financial risk mamagement sbjectives and its financial

instruntents and hedging activities.

As highlighied in notes 15 & 16 to the financial statements, the group meets its funding requirements through a combination of bank loan facilities and

sharehokder funding.

The dircctors have assessed the impact of the current uncertainty around Covid on all aspecis of the business, focussing specifically on the operations and
cashflows of the Group, This stress-lzsting included assessing the levels of cash and avaifable finance within the Group assuming a very significant reduction in
furnover on the basis of customer default or payinent plans, reduced lettings and increased vocations al break and expiry. ‘I'his has been offset by factorng in

identified and actioned savinps {n operational expenditure, and a review of uncommitted capital expenditure where hecessary.

The loans within the proup's subsidiaries are subject to loan 1o valus amd interest cover covenant tests. The directors have also considered the en-going
availability of finance by medeiling the impact on loan covenants of reduced income and significant decreases in valuatfons of properties. Even considering

reasonably kely downside scenarios thers are no covenant breaches forecast. Al year end the group bad £20.8m of cash deposits.

The dircotors have recsived confirmation that Bruntwood SciTeeh will continus to provide the necessary level of support ta enable it to operate for the
Foreseeable future. In considering the ability of the 3V partner to provide any necessary support in the context of the uncertainties it faces as a result of the current
eeonomic climale, the directors have obtained an understanding of the holding companies forecasts, the vontinuing availability of their facililies and sheir

sleategic and contingent plans, inckuding scenario planning in light of Covid.

Basis of conscelidation

The group financial statements consolidate the financial sesults of Bruntwood Science Limited and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 30 Seplember 2021,
The resolts of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of in the period are consotidated for the periods from or to the date on which control passed.
Business combivations are accounted for under the purchase methed. Al intra-group transactions, balances, expenses and income are eliminated on
consolidation. Transitional relief per Section 35 of FRS 102 has been applied in these financial stalements in respect of business combinations efTected prior to

the date of transition.

5



BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 Sepiember 2022

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Turnover
Turrover represents property rental, service charge, assotiated incore and the appropriate allocation of renta! preniums, pravided in the normeal course of
business, net of VAT, Turnover is accounted for on an accruals basis and smounts invoiced in advance relating to the next sccounting period are included in

deferred tncome within the balance sheet. Trading property sales are accounted for on a legal completion basis.

Consiraction Contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of corapletion of the
canteact activity at the balance sheet date. This is normally measured by the praportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to fhe
eslimated total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion. Varations in contract work, claims and incentive

payments are inclnded to the extent that the amount can he measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the ontcome of a construction candract cannot be estimated relinbl revenue 15 ised to the extent of confract costs incurred where it is
¥,

probable they will be recoverable. Coniract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurced. When costs {ncurred i securing a
contract are recognised as an expensc in the period in which they are inourred, they are not included in contract cosis il"the contract is obfained in a subsequent

Fiat ek

periad. When it is probable that 101al conlract costs will exceed tatal contrac| , the expected loss is gnised as an exp ir y.

Government grants

Government grants are recopnised hased on the acerual model and are measared a1 the fair valae of the asset received or receivable. Grants refating 1o revenue
are recognised in ircome over the period in which the related costs are recognised.

Government grants received in raspect of aperational fixed assels are credited 1o a deferred income account and released to the profit and foss account over the
usefil economic Life of the asset to which they relate.

Governmenl grants received on the construction of investment properties are credited to a deferred income account.

In msponsé to the Covid-19 pandemic the business took advantage of the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme which resulied in the business receiving 2

government prant 1o cover the salary costs of a number of employees. The receipt was recognised in the profit and loss,

Disposal of investment properties
The profit or koss on disposal of investinent properties are reporied separately within the canselidated profit and loss, in accordange with Scction 5 of FRS

102, Profit or loss is caleulated as net proceeds less book value at the time of disposal. The profit or loss on disposal is recognised upon kepal completion.

Banl harrvowings and finance cests
Tnterest bearing bank loans and overdrafis are recorded at the proceeds received, net of dirsel issue codts, In accordance with Section {1 of FRS 162, inance

costs of financial liabilities are recopnised in the profit and loss account over (he term of such instruments at a constant rate on the carcying amount.

Borrowing costs which are directly anribotable 1o the constraction of langible fixed assels are capitalised as part of the cost of fhose assets. Capitalisation
begins when both finance costs and expenditures for the asset are being incurred and activities that are necessary to get the asset ready for use ase in progress.

Capitalisation crases when subs:antially all the activities that are necessary to get the assel ready for nse are complete,

Fixed assets (excluding Investment properties)
Tangible fixed assets are siated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreeiation is provided on 2l tangible fixcd assets, other than
investment propertics, at rates calculated 10 wrile off the cost or valuation of each asset over its expecied useful life, as follows:

» Fixtures, fitting & IT equipment on siraight Jine basis

* Motor vehicles 25% - 30% on reducing balance

« Plant & machinery - 7% on reducing balance



BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLINDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fov the Year Ended 30 September 2022

I ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment praperties

Tavestment preperiies [or which fair value can be meesorec reliably without undus cost and <fFort or an ongping basis are measured at fair valoe annually with

any change recognised in the profit and less account,

Properties in ihe course of development ace ineluded in the balance sheet at cost subject to provisions if the directors deern relevant. Cost includes intersst and

direstly attributable overheads whilst tho property is in the course of develupment,

Indanglhle fixed asscts - Goodwil
Goodwi!l arising on the acquisition of subsidiaty nndentakings and businesses, represenling any excess ol Lhe fair value of the consideration given over fhe fair

valug of he identifiabke assets and tiahilities ecquired is capitalised and written offon a sieaight line basis over jts useful economic life.

Negative goadwill is included in the balance sheet and is credited to the profit and lass account in the periods in which the acquired non-monetary assels are
recovered through depreciation or sale. Negative poodwill in excess of Ihe falr value of the non-monetary assets acquired is credited to the profit and loss

account in the periods expected to benefit.

Joinl veatures
Toim yentures are sccounled for using the gross equity method. The consolidated profit and loss account includes the group’s share of the joint venture's

operating profil, interest and tax while the group's net share of the assets and liabilities of the joinl venlure arc shows in the consotidaled balanee shest,

Associates

In the group financia} stalements investinents in associates are accounted for using the equity method. Investinents (n associates are initially recognised at the
iransactior price (including transaction costs) and are subsequently adjusted to reflect the group's share of the profit or Joss and other comprehensive incomne of
the associate. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of associntes is accounted for in accordance with the policy set oul above, Any unamartised balance of

goodwill is included in the carrying value of the invesimend in associale,

Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investinents ara shown in the accounts at cost less any provisions for impairment,

Current asset investmenls
Current asset mvesiments ane initially measured Bt cost then remeasured to fair value at each year end, with any gain or loss recognised in the profit and loss

accoum.

Development in progress
Amounts recoverable on long-term contracts, which are included in deblors, are stated at the net safes value of ths work done luss amoonts received as progress
payments on account, Excess progress payments are included in credilors as payment on sccount, Cumulative costs incurred net of amounts transferred o cost

of seles, less provision for contingencies and anticipated future losses on conlracts, are included as jong-lerm contrast batances in stock,

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the group has a presenl obligation (legad or constructive) as a result of' 2 past event, it is probable that the group will be required

ta settle that ohligation and a relahle estimate can be made ef Ihe amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obfigation at the balance shect date, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Whero a provision s measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its

carrying amount is the present value of those cash Mows {when the efTect of Lhe time value of money is material}.

When some or all of fhe economic benefits required 1o settle 2 provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, & receivable is recognised as an asse: if

it is virtually certain that reimbursement wil} be recefved and the awmount of the reccivable can be measured refiably.
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BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 Septeinber 2022

1 ACCOUNTING POLICILS (CONTINUED)

Warrentles
Provisions for the expected cost of wartanty obligations s recognised at the balance sheet date, at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to
seliles the group's ebligation,

Financlal instruments
Financial assets and financial iabilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisiorts of the instrument.
Financial Jinbilities and equity insteuments ate classified according ta the substance of the conlractual arrangenients entered into. An equity ivstrument is any

somtract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after dedueting ail of its Jinbi)ities.

i Financial assets and fiabilities

Al financial assets and liabilities ace inilfally d at transaction price (including teansaction cons), exeept For those financial avsets classifizd as at fair

value through profit or loss, which are initially ineasursd at fair value (which is normatly the transaction price excluding transaction costs), unless the

arrangement constitutes a fi ing t ion. If an arang: t constitates ing transaction, the financial asset or financial liabilily is measured at the

present value of the future payments discouated at a market rate of interest for a similar debt iastranent,

Financie! assets and liabihlies are only offsct in the statement of financial position when, and only when there exists a legally enforceable right 1o set off the

recogised amounts and the guoup inteads either fo seitle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the {iabikity sinuitaneously.

Debt instruments which meet the following conditions are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the clfective interest method:

a) The tontractua! retuen 1o the holder i3 (i) 2 fixed amount; (ii) a positive fixed rate or a positive variable rale; or (iii) a combination of a posilive or a
negative {ixed rate and e positive variabie rate.

b) The contract may provide for repayments of the principal or the retum to the holder (but not both) to be linked to a single relevant obyervable index of
genernl price inflation of the currenay in which the debt insirument is denominated, provided such links are not leveraged.

¢) The contract may provide far e determinable variatfon of the return to the kolder during the fife of the instcument, provided that (1) the new rale satisfies
condislon {&) and the variation is nof contingent on future events other than (1) a change of a ecntracwual variable rete; {2) to protect the holder against
credit deterioration of the issuer; (3) changes in levies applied by a central bank or arisitig from chanpes in relevant taxation or taw, or (i) the new rale is a
market tate of inmferest and satisfies condition {a),

d) There is no contraciual provision that could, by its tems, result in the hoider losing the principal amaunt or any interest attributalbils to the current period or
prior periods.

€) Contractual provisions that permit tha issuer to prepay a debt instrument ot permit the fofder to put il back to the issuer before maturity are not contingent
on fdure events, other than to protect the hoider against the credit deterioration of the issuer or 4 changs m contro? of the issuer, or to pratect the holder or

issuer against chanpes in levics applied by a central bank or arising from chanpes in relevant taxation or law,

Debt instruments that have ne staled intérest rate (and do ot constitute financing transaclion) and are classified as payable or receivable within onc yesr are

initially measured at an undiscounted amount of the cash or other considecation expected to be paid or received, net of irpairmeat.
Commtitments to make and receive loans which meet the conditions menlioned above are measured at cost {which may be nil) lest impairment.

in  Derivative financial instrigments
The group uses derivative Fnancial instruments to reduce exposuce to inlerest tale movements. The group does not hold or issuc derivative financial

nstrumenis for speculative purposes.

Darivatives are initially recognised at fais value at the date a derivative contracl is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their faic value at each

reporting date, The resulting gain or 1038 i3 recognised in profit of loss immediately. Hedge accounting for derivatives is not adopted.

Wi, Fair value megsnrenent

The best evidence of fair valus is a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market. When quoted prices are unavaitable, the price of a recent transaction i
for an ideniical asset provides cvidence of fair value as Jong as there has not been a significant change in economie circumstances ot a significant lupse of time ‘
since the ransaction took place, 1F the market is not active and receut transactions of an identical asset on their ovn are tiot a good estimate of fair valug, the

Tair value is estimated by using a valuation technigue.
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BRUNTWOQOD SCIENCTE, LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINULD)
For the Year Ended 30 Sepiember 2022

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Lenses
Rental income from operating leases s recognised on a straight line hasis over the term of the relevant lease. Bznefits received and receivable as an incantive to
sign an oparating lease are similarly spread on a straight ling basis over ths lease tezm. The transitional exemplion available in respect of incentives offered for

tenses entered ino before the date of transition to FRS 102 has heen applied.

Assets held undar finance leases and other simtilac coniracts, svhich confer rights and obligations similas to those atiached to owned nssets, are capilalised as
tangible fixed assets and are depreciated over the ghoster of the lease terms and their useful lives. The capital glements of future lease obligations ave recorded as
Tiabifities, while the interest elements are charged to the prefit and logs aceonnt over the period of the leasss to produce & constant rate of eharge on the balence

of capital rapayments outstanding.

Renials under operating leases nre charge on a straight-line basis over the lease term, evon if the paymenls are not made on such a basis. Benefits received and

receivable s an incealive 1o sign an operating lease are similarly spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Penstons
The group makes discretionary contributions fo personal pension plans in respact of all employees. The amount charged to the profit and loss account in respect
of the pension cost are the contributions payable in the year. Differences between contributions payabla in the year and conltributions actually paid are shown as

either accruals or prepayments on ihe halance sheet.

Share based payments

Fair value is measured by reference 1o the net assets of the group at year end less a discount for & non-controtling interest in a private company. The group has a
cheice to issue either cash-seitled share-based or equity-settled share based payments to certain employees. Given the lack of a readily avnilable market for the
shares they are accounted for as cash seliled and as sireh a Liabitity equal to the portion of the employment services received §s recognised al the current fair value

deterrined at each balance sheet date for cash-setiled share-based payments,

‘Taxation
Curent UK corporation tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacied or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet dats,

Deferred lax js recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed nt the balance shect date where transactions or events that
reault in an abligation 10 pay more tax in the future or o tight to pay less tax in the future have oecurred at the balance sheet dae. Timing differences ore
differences between the group’s taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial statements that ariss from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax

assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the fnancial statements.

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis ef a1l available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely

than not there will be suitable taxable profils from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be dadncted.

Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substandively enacted by the balance sheet date that are expected to apply to the
reveesal of the timing difference. Deferred tax relating to non-depreciable propenty, plant and equipment measured using the revatuation model and investment

properly is measired using the tax rates and allowences thal apply (0 sale of the asset,

Where items recognised in other comprehensive income or equity are chargenble 1o or deductible for tax purposes, the resulting current or deferred tnx expense

of income is prasented {n the same component of comprehensive income or aquity as the transaction or other event that rasuited in the 1ax expense or income.

Curent tax assats and liabilities are offset only when therz is a legally enforcenble right to set off the amoatnts and the group intends either to settle on a net basis

or to eealise the asset and settle the Hability sienltanecusly.

Deferred 1ax assets and linbilities are offset only if: a}) the gronp has a legally enforceable eight to offsel current tax assels agninst cusrent tax liabilities; and b) the
deferred lax assets and deferred tax liabililies relate 1o income taxes kevied by the same taxation anthority on either the same taxnble entily or difTerant taxable
entities which intend either to settle current lax liahilities and assets on a net basis, ar to realise the assets and settle the Habilities simultancously, in each future

penod in which signifieant amownds of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTENUED)
Tor the Vear Ended 30 September 2022

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KLY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

n the apphication of the group's accounting policies, which are described in note |, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

about the carrying amounts of assats and liabililies that are not rendily apparent from other sources. The estimates and jated ptions are based on

historical experience and other factors that are considered to he refevant, Actuai results thay differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing hasis. Revisions to eecounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimale is revised i the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the révision and future pariods {f the revision affects both curvent and future

periods.

Key sources of estimntion uncerininty

Tnvestment Properties

A key source of estimation uncertainty refates to the valuation of investment properties, where a valuation {y obtained anaually, either by professioually
qualified external valuers, or by the proup's own intemal quatified staff. The evidence to support these valuations is based primarily on recent, comparable
market fransactions on an arm's length basis. Key assumptions applied to {he valuations are inherently subjective and so are subject 10 a degree of uncertainty,

(he key assumptions appiivd are deseribed in further datall befow,

A key driver of the property valuatiens is the terms of the leases in place at the valualion date. These determine the cash flow profiie of the property for a
number of years. The valuation assunies adjostnients from these rental values fo current market rent at the fime of the aaxt rent review (where a typical lease
utlows only for upward adjustment) and as leases expirc and are replaced by new leases. The current market level of rent is assessed based on evidence

provided by the mosi recent refevant leasing transactions and regotiations.

The nominal equivaient yield is appiied as a discount rate 1o the rental eash flows which, after taking into account other {nput assumptions such as vacancies
and costs, penerates the market value of the property. The cquivalent yield applied is assessed by reference o market Jransactions for similar properties and
titkes inlo account, amongst other things, any risks associated with the rent uplift assumptions. The aet faitinl yield is caleulzied as the current niet (nconte over
The gross market value of the asset and is used as a sense chack and to compare against market transactions for similar properties. The valuation outputs, along
with inpwis and assumptions, are reviewed 10 ensure these ere in ling with what a marked participant would use when pricing each usset. The reversionary yield

is the return received from an assel once the estimated rental value has been captured on today’s assessment of market value.

Value of investrient property as at 30 September 2022 is £858.4m (2021: £647.4m). Vurther informalion can be found in note 11

Taxeeptional Ttems

Costs that are incurred and are deemed to be either one off in nature, outside the normal course of buismess and of a materia! nature ars presented separate!y on

Lhe face of the profit and loss actount with an nccompatying aote (noted).

Critical Accounting Judgemenis

The direciors do swof consider therg to be any eritical accouniing judgements in preparing these financial staiements.
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BRUNTWOON SCIENCE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINCED)
For the Year Buded 30 September 2022

3 TURNOVER 2022 2021
£G00 £000
Rental and related income 58,543 36,853
Service charge incoine 13,185 14,875
71,728 51,768
All turmovar ariscs from the group’s principal aclivity in the United Kingdom and exciudes Value Added Tax. Lems hilled itt advance/arrears are cartied
forward/carried back i order that the revenue s recognised in the petiod in whish the sacvice is provided.
4 BEXCEPTIONALPROFIT AND LOSS
I3 January 224, Alder.ey Park Luwied sold fand to PH Homes for £14.3m (50% of proceeds deferred). Afler fees, this resulted in g loss of £2.0m.
Tn Seplember 2022, ID Manchester Limiled wrote off cosis incurred with the set up of 10 Manchester Limited amounting to £2.3m.
In Jannary 2021, Alderley Park Limited sold Alderfey House land to PH Homes for £2.8m. After fees, this resulled in a loss of £61.4k
In Scptember 2021, Innovatien Birmingham Limited wrote off the Lux TSI investroent, tncurting of a loss of £4.2k.
5 INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND EMPLOYEFES
Average Average
Average monthly number of persons employed (including directors) 2022 2021
Administration and imanagement 7! 66
The company ils¢If has no employses, other than the divectors (2024: nil).
2022 2021
Staff costs doring the year (including directors) £000 £000
Wages and salaries 6,322 5,538
Socinl security custs 703 638
All Employee Share Chynersltip Plan 454 214
Pension costs 77 330
7,916 6,720

The directors’ remuneration in the current year was paid by Brustwood Seience Managemenl Services Limiled. Directars are cemunerated for their services

1o gYoup a5 a whole as L is not practicable o sllocale between subsidiary companies.

The directors of the company are considered by the group to be key management personnel.



BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUFRD)
For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

6 PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

2022 2021
£080 £008
Profit on ordinary activilies before taxation is stated afler {charginp¥erediting:
Depreciation (2,475) (1,933)
Aunortisation of grants 71 G78
’ Renl paid on operating lcases (64R) {605)
! Gain on revaluation of invesiment properties 117,036 22,836
Gain on interest rate derivatives 9,159 939
The analysis of suditor’s remuneration is as follows:
Fees payable 1o the company's auditor for the nudit of the company's annyal accornis 19 14
. Fees payablo to the company’s auditor and their assaciates for other services to the group - -
i - The audit of the compary's subsidiaries pursizant to legislation 214 170 '
Non-pudii fees
- Other non-audit fees 324 126

Other non-audit fees are in relation to real estate services in hoth years.

The disclosures above ore jor the graup, The company is nol reguired, in its individeal financial stalements, to disclose seporately information ahout fees for

non-audit services provided to the company because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on n censolidated basis.

7 FINANCE COSTS (NET)

2022 2021
Tuvestment incone £000 £000
Lieposit account interest 145 -
2022 2021
Interest payable nnd sitnjlar expenses £000 £000
Bank loens ond overdraft 9,270 6,451
Other interest and finance costs 42 220
9,312 6.681
Finance costs (net} 9,157 5,681
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BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
Vior the Year Ended 30 September 2022

8 TAX ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Analysis of the tax charge
The tax charge an the profit on ordinary activities for the year was as fallows:

20622 2021
Corporalion tax £000 £006
Adjustiments in respect of prior years - “
Total carrent tax - -
Deferred iax
Timing differences, origination and reversal 28,750 4,571
Adjusunens in respeat of previous perinds (501) 431
Elffect of change in taxation mte - 7,749
‘total deferred tax ehorge 28,249 12,771
Total 1ax on profit 28,249 12,771
LFactars affecting the tax eharge
2022 2021
£n00 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 114,024 17,100
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at standard rate of (9% (2021: 19%) 21,665 3,249 i
Faotors affeoling the charpe:
Non taxable income (14} (74)
1isallowable expenses 198 147
Interest payable in faX ceinpuration not in accounts (922} (540) :
Group relief sutcendered for nil payment 723 432
Corporate Interest Restriction - 646 -
Joint ventures 174 -
Adjusiment to tax charge in respect of previous periods - deferred (501 451
Nifference in {ax rate 6,900 7,149
Differences on chargeable gain caleulations aot recognised in deferred tax 86 il
Total tax charge for the year 28,242 12,771

On 3 March 202 1, the UK Chancellor annownced that the main rate of UK Corporation tax would increase from [9% o 25% with effect from | April 2023, This

change was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021, Accordingly, all deferred tax assets and liabilities have been calculuted on the basis that they reverse 11

future at the 25% tox rate (PY: calculated at the 25% tax rate)

Bruniwood Science Limited is 2 100% UK domiciled group.

2 PROFIT OF THE PARENT COMPANY

As permitted by Seetion 408 of the Companies Acl 2006, the profit and foss account of the pareat company is not presented as pan of these financial

stalemeants. The parent company's prafit for the Bnancial year was £1,000 (2021: £ail),

£} DIVIDENDS PAID

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 30 September 2022 {2021: £nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 39 September 2022

Investmien | Propertics

Fixtures,
Fitlings &
Laong T Moter Plant

Group Freehald leasehold cquipment vehieles &Machinery Tatal

£000 £000 £A0H £000 £000
COST OR YALUATION
At 1 Oclaber 202} 340,317 307,002 14,172 it 11,604 674,256
Additions 72,222 36,020 1,549 - 362 110,753
‘Trnnsfoired Betwern Group Companics - - - - -
Disposnls (14.325) B a2 - {l4.357)
Revaluntian L 38,821 3821% - - - 117,036
At 30 Seprember 2022 ’ 457,035 401,327 18,189 11 12,226 838,688
DEPRECIATION
At ] October 2021 - - 3,724 n - 5.733
Chorge for year 1870 - 605 2475
Disposnls €3) - - {3)
A0 September 2023 - - 7,591 1] 605 4,207
NETBOOK VALUE
At 30 September 2022 457,035 401,327 10,498 - 11,621 830,451
AL 2D September 2021 . 340,317 307,092 10,448 - 11,664 669,521

The historical cost of the group propertics a4 the year end {s £301.0m (2021: £243.9m) for freehold propecties and £246,7m (2021 £21].0m} for leasshold

praperties. Other fixed assets are stated at cost.

Investment properties include capitalised interest in aggregate amounting to £4.0m (2021: £2.9m)

The freehold and leasehold investment properties were valied as at 30 September 2022 by our extemal valuers CBRE. The valvations were undedtaken in

actordarce with 'Red Book Principies’ and were conducted on the basis of Marked Value. The process included an independeat senior piriner review.
The Directors' Valuation Panel of the company utso underiook o detolled valuation appraisal of all of the group's properties an a customer by customer basis
using the same methodalogy as the external valuer and concor with theit valuation of the postfulio which bas been adopted in these seconnss. The Directocs'

Valuntion Panel comprises of the following:

C G Oglesby, Chief Executive Officer, Bruntwood Limited, qualified as a Chartered Surveyer in 1993 and has 33 years' experience in the property

invesiment industry.

P A Crowther, Property Director, Bruntwood Science Limited, qualified as a Chartered Surveyor in 2000 and has 27 years' experience in the property ;

mvestment industry.

K I Croity, Chief Finanzial Officer, Bruntwood Limited, Chartered Accountant, has 20 years' experience in the property investment industry.

fnvesiment properlics are valued by adopling the “invesimeat methed’ of vaiuation. This approach involves applying capitalisation yields to current and

future rental steeams net of income voids arising from vacancies or rent-free periads and associated running costs, These capitalisation yields and Future rental
values are based on comparable property and leasing transactions in the market using the valuers’ professional judgement and markel observation. Other
factors taken into account in the valuations includs the lenure of the propery, tenancy details and ground and strictural condilions, For fucther information

plense see note 2.
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BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINULED)
For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

12 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Tnvestmentin

Group Assoclates
£000
Sharc of nct nsscls as at 1 October 2021 (13

Acquisition of associale
Impaitmen of associate

Share of retnined profit for the year 59
Share of net assets at 30 September 2022 46

Investiicuts 11 associates entail & 25% share in Scionter Devalopments Timited,

Other
Group invesimcms
£000
Carrying value ns at T October 2021 4,531
Additions 836
Fmpairment -
Carrying vatue at 30 September 2622 5,367

Other investments are held at cost less any provision for impairment,
Shares in
Conpany subsidinries
£

COST AND NET BOOK VALUE

At ) October 2021 and 30 Seplember 2022 22,288,227

Investment in

Conipany associates
£000

Share of net assets as at ¥ October 2021 and /s at 30 September 2022 960
Company 2022 2021
£000 £000
Loans te group undertakings 271034 229410

The balances due from [elfow group endertakings are unsecuved, interest free and repayable on demand.



BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 Septemhber 2022

12 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Counfry of Eifective Praportion of
Subsidiaries [ncorporation Activity ordinary shares held
BHIC 1 Lintited England and Wales Development company w00% A
Rirmingham Enterprize Wharf Limited Enpland and Wales Drevelopmenl coshpany o~
Birmingham Enterprise Wharl Holdings Limited England and Wales  Ho.ding company o0%s  ~
Hirmitighamt Health Imovation Campus Holdings Lid ~ England aud Wales  Holding comgany 100% *~
Birminghasn Health Innovation Campus Limited England and Wales Development compasiy 100% ~
Birminghatn Seicace Limited England and Wales Holding company 100% *
Birmingham Techuology {Properiy} Limiled England and Wales Dormant 0% 4
Binningham Technology (Froperty One) Lid England and Wales Dormant 100%
Birminghamn Technology (Ventre Copital) Ltd England and Wales Dormiant ooy~
Bruntwood Circle Square ! Timited Fogland and Wales  Property investment 100% ~
Bruntwood Circle Square 2 Limited Englaad and Weles Propery invesiment 100%
Brutwoad Circle Square 4 Limited England and Wales Property investment {00~
Bruntwood Circle Square 12 Limited England and Wales  Development company 100%  *
Bruntwood Circle Square 13 Limited Engtand and Wales Developmetit company 0o "
Bruntwood (flasgew Seience Limiled England and Wales Holding company 100%
Bruatwoed 1D Manchester Limited England and Wates Holding company 100%  *
Bruntwood Met Tower Lmited England and Wafes Devefopment company 160% ~
Bruntwood Platforin Leeds Limited Gngland and Wales  Property investment 100%
Bruntwoed Science Managemznt Services Lid England and Wales Managemeant company 100% 4
Bruntwood SeiTech Melbourn Limited Englawd and Wales  Praperty investment 100% »
Circle Square Green Company Limited Englane and Wales  Propesty investment 10p% 4
Tonovation Birmingham Limited England and Wales  Property investment 00% -
Alderley Imaging Limited England and Wales Dormant %
Alderley Park Holdings Limited England and Wales  Holding company TT%  ~
Alderley Park Limited England and Wales  Property investment W
Clitylabs Limited Engtand and Wales Property investment 67 "
Citylahs 3.0 Limiled Enpiand and Wales Developinent company 67% "
Citylabs 4.0 Limited Evgtand and Wales Development company 67% "
Manchester Science Parinerships Limited England aad Wales  Property invesimen 7% "
Manchester Teochnopark Limited Eagland and Wales Dornnant 6%  °
MI-TDEA Limited Eagland and Wales Management company 6% "
1D Manchester Limited Eangland and Wates Development company 65% ~
Citylabs 2.0 Limited Eugland and Wales  Property investimeny 64%  ~
Jaint Ventures
Circle Square District Holdinps Corpany Lid England and Wales  Holding company 50% ™
Circie Square District Company Ltd England and Wales Property development 50% *
Assnriates
[nfex Therapeutics Limited England end Wales Rescarch and development 0%
Sciontec Developmenis Limited England and Wales Holding company 25% e
Liverpoo! Science Park Developments Limited England and Wales Dormant 25% ¥ Ao
Liverpool Science Park Limited England and Wales  Property developitent 2595 *& ~rnn

* Held via 50% investment in Circle Square Districl Holdings Company Limited
** Held via 25% investment in Sciontec Developments Limited

A registered address Union, Albert Square, Manchester, Eugland, M2 6LW

M registesed address: The Hox, Horseshoe Lane, Alderley Edge, Enpland, SK9 7QP

~on registered address: Mereside, Alderley Park, Macclesfield, Cheshire, SK104TG
A repisiened address; Liverpool Science Park, 131 Mount Plaasant, Liverpool, L3 5TF

Audit exeatption
The following subsidiary undertakings also consolidaled at 30 Seplember 2022 claimed exemption from audit under section 479A Companias
Act 2006:

Country af Effeclive Proportion of
Subsidiarles incorporation Activity ordinary shares heid
Birmingham Science Limited Eogland and Wales  Holding company 100%
Binningham Technology (Propery) Limited Englaad and Wales Dormant 100%  ~
MI-IDEA Limited England and Wales Management company 6%

Bruntwood Glasgow Science Limited and Bruntwood Met Tower Limited were incarporated ot 18 Jannary 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

13 DEBTQRS

Amows falling dus within one year:
Trade debtors

Amounts pwed by group undertakings
Amounts owed by joint venture (note 24)
Anounts owed by related parties (noss 24)
Other taxation and sociel seourity

Othec debiors and prepayments

Amounts falting due after more than one year:
Other debtors
Derivative fimancial instruments (note 18)

The balances due from joint venture undertakings and related parties are unsecured, interes! free and repryable on deman<d.

14 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade crediters

Aceruals and deferred income
Govermnment grants

Other loans {nate 16)

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Amounts owed to related parties (note 24)
Corporation 1ax

Other taxation and social security

Other creditors

BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

Group Company

2022 201 2022 2021
£600 £000 £000 £000
5,669 7,649 - -
- - 278,736 241,332

536 829 - -
971 2,254 215 2,208
18,049 17,171 - -
25,245 27,503 278,951 243,540
13,704 6,959 174 174
8,795 . - -
22,494 6,959 174 174
47,73% 34,862 279,125 243,714
Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
1,881 3,574 - -
46,624 45,35% - -
24,795 i7,E85 - -
14,697 - - -
165,108 123,108 166,771 127,150
5,993 4,013 - -
16,018 9,956 - -
275,116 203,191 166,771 127,150

‘The balance due to group underlakings is ensectired, interest free nnd repeyable on demand,

The gevernment grants relale to construclion of Investment Property acrass & numiber of sites, Un-amortised amounts at 30 September 2022 includs £5.0m
(2021: £5.0m) for the building of Birmingham Enlerprise Wharf, £1.4m (202(: £1.4m) far black refurbishment projects at Aklerley Park, £0.8m (2021:
£0.8tn) in relation Lo the construgtion of Citylabs 2.0 and £9.0m (2021: £0.%m) in relation (o construction a1 Birmingham Health Inpovation Campus,

Amoriised amounls inciude £0.9m (2021: £1.0m) in relalion to the installation of a Technology Hub incubator at Manchester Science Parinerships,

£1.0m (2021: £{.2m) in relation 1o the installation of a Technology Hub incubator at Platform, Leeds and £2.8m (2021: £3.0m) in relation to fit-outs

complefed at Alderiey Park. Grants are atnortised in line with the useful economic life of the project There are no unfulfilled conditions or other

contingensies attaching to these grants £4.0m (2021: £4.0m) at Manchester Seience Park for the huilding of BASE.

[5 CREDITORS; AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Bank loans (note 16}

Other loans (note 16)

Denivative financial instruments {note 18}
Other oreditors

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
278,736 241,332 278,736 241,332
20,225 3,203 - -
- 369 - -

498 43 - -
299,459 244,947 278,736 241,332
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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16 LOANS

Ao analysis of the maturkty of foans is given below:

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £0a0 £006 £0400

Amounts falling due within one year or on demand:
Other toans maturing September 2023 14,697 - - -

Amounts fafling due between two and five years:

Other loans maturing Cctober 2023 12,079 - - -
Qther loans matering April 2025 8,525 - - -
Loan facility fees (37%) - - -
Other loans maluring September 2023 3,203 - -
Loan [acility fees - - - -
Bank loans maturing March 2024 280,000 244,000 280,000 244,000
Loan facility fees (1,264) (2,668) (1,264) {2,668)
313,658 244,335 278,738 241,332

In March 2021, the group re-fisanced the bank lozn maturing July 2022 and extended the three-year syndicated bank loan, which is secured via a first fixed
charge over the coramercial property held by Alderiey Park Limited, Manchester Science Partnerships Limited, Bruntwood Platforin Leeds Limited, Citylabs
Limited, Bamtwood Circie Square | Limiied, Bruntwosd Cireie Square 2 Limbted, Bruntsvood Circle Square 4 Limited, Bnntwood Cirele Square 12 Limited,
Bruntwood Cirefe Square 13 Limited and Brmtwood Cirele Square Green Company. The total faciflity is £280m. Drawings on this loan sland at £280m as at 30
September 2022 {2021: £244m).

Ou 14 Aprit 2022, Enterprise Wharf Limited and Birmingham Health Innovation Campus Limited agreed a dovelepment facilities of £19.6m and £24.8m
respectively with Qaknorth, providing development finance for the Enterprise Wharf and Birminghatn Health Innovation Campus new baild schemes, Drawings
total £12.1m on the funding for Enterprise Wharf as ae 3] September 2022 (2021: £nil), Drawings ameunt of £0il in respect of Birmingham Health Innovation
Campus Limited. Interest is incurred ot 5,1% + Base rate and the facilitics mature 18 month after fizst utilisation. Enterpzise Wharf Limited this will be October

2023 and Birmingham Hezlth innavation Campus is estimated ta mature May 2024,

On the 29 April 2022 the group acquired Mel Tower Glasgow, and a Fecility of £35.310 was agreed with Oakaorth, providing development fuance For ths
redevelopment of the building and wider site. Drawings during the year amounted to £8.5m.

On the 20 December 2019, Manchester Science Partnerships Limited agreed a development Eacility of £15.9m with the Nonth West Evergreen Fund, providing
development finance for the BASE new build. Drawings total £14.7m as at 30 September 2022 (2021: £3.2m). The facility matures in January 2023,

17 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

2022 2024

Deferred tax £000 £000
Capital aliowarces v excess of depreciation 4,535 7,003
Tax losses carried forward (3.219) (8,591
Other short term timing differences {564) 212)
Property revaluations 66,315 38,618
Derivative contracts 2,148 {92)
Capital losses {2,722) (3,432)
60,543 32,294

Deferred {ax

£080
At 1 Oclober 2021 32,294
Current year charge 28,750
Adjustnent in respect of prior years {501}
Effect of change in UK tax rate -
AL 30 September 2022 60,543

The amount of deferced tax not provided on capital losses is £nil (2021 £nil). The amount of deferred tax not provided on resirictions arising from the
corporate interesl restriction tules is £2.1m (2021 £3.0m)



NOTES TO TIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Tor the Year Ended 30 September 2022

1B BERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

The following 1abis details the notional principat amounts and remaining lerms of interest rate swap contracts outslanding as at the reporting date:

Average contract

fixed interest rale Notiaral prineipal value Fatr value
2022 202t 2912 2021 2022 2021
Y E £000s £0060: £000s £000s
Less than L year - - - - - -
%o S years 0.70% 140,000 140,000 8,790 (369)
140,000 140,000 8,190 (369)

Interest rades swaps

On 30 September 2021, the group entered (nto a new interest rate swap with a principal value of £140m at a fixed interest rale charge of 0.70%. The

swap expires on |19 March 2024,

The group will settle the differehce between the fixed and fleating interest an a het hasis.

19 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Group and company
Aliotted, issucd and fully paid:

Number; Clngs:
174,159 A Orndinary
130,869,904 B Ordinary

The group and company’s other reserves are as follows:

Nominal
valuc:
£1.00
£1.00

2022 2021

£ £

174,159 174,159
130,869,506 130,869,506
131,044,065 131,044,065

The profit and {ess rese:ve tepresents cumulative profit or Josses, incfuding unreatised profit on the remeasurement of investment properties, net off

dividends paid and other adjustments,
20 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
At | Cotober 2021

Share of profit for the year
AL 30 Seplember 2022

£00D
32,513
17,445
30,558

%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED
Tor the Year Ended 30 September 2022

21 RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT REFORE INTEREST AND TAX TQ CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2022 2021
Group enly £800 £000
Profit before interest and tax 123,191 23,781
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 2475 1,833
Adniortisation of grant incorme (7713 (978}
Gain oo revaluation of investment properties {117,036} {22,836)
Movement in fuir valie of derivative instruments (9,159 {939
Exceptional loss 2,018 66
Profit on disposal of listed investments -
Share of results of joint ventures / associales (59) 13
Operating cash inflow before mavemsnt in work(rg capftal 656 1,040
Decreasefincrease) in deblors 2.59¢ (7,255)
Increasc in ereditors 47,277 64,794
Net eash generated from operating activities 50,932 58,579

22 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASES

At 30 September 2022, the group bad amounts contiacted Gt but not provided for of £4%.6m for capitel expendituce (2021 £41.8m).

At 30 September 7022, toia. minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2022 2821

Leases which expire: £000 £000
Within one year 351 40
Between 1 and § years 1,405 1,604
Aler five years 37,457 42,997
39,213 45,002

AL 30 September 2022 the future minimurn lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases:

2022 2021

£000 1000

Within one year 23,906 16,444
Between 1 and 5 years 57,268 34,552
ABer five yearg 38,289 22,922
119,463 73,918

23 ULTIMATE TARENT COMPANY AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The divestors cansider thera to be vo ultimate controlling party. The immediate parent compnny is Bruntwood SciTech Limited {Registered office, Union,
Albert Square, Manchester, M2 6LW) which is jointly ownad by Bruatwood Limited and Legal and General Capital Investments Eimiled. The largest
group of companics, of which the campany is a member, that produces consolidated financial statements is Bruniwood SciTech Liméted, a conpany
incorporated (it England and Wales.



NOTRS TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINULD) BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED
For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The group has taken advantage of the excmption, under the tlerms of Section 33 FRS 102 not fo disclose rclated parly transactions with wholly owned

subsidiaries within the group.

During the year caded 30 Scotember 2022 the group entered into the following transactions with Bruntwood Group companies, related parties by nalure of

Heuntweod Group being 50750 joint venlure parent of Hrantwnod SeiTech Group companies:

Ircome receivable in Tespect of service charge expendituce incurred on behalf of Bruntvood Group cotnpanies and internal rent;

M2 2621

£00¢ £000
Afflecks Limited 163 192
Bruntwood Estates Alpha Porfolio Limsted I -
Bruslwood Estates Beta Porfolin Limited t -
Bruntwood Citcle Square t4 Liniled 3 B
Biuntwood LG Limited - !
Bruntwood Management Services Limited 647 1,029
Bruntwoed Meeting Roams Limited - 148
Unify Bncrgy Limited ¢Formerly Bruntwoed Energy Services Limited) 2414 2353

Expenses paysble in respesl of respect of service level agreciments for the provision of facilities management, wiilities supply, fixed recharges in respect of

overheads and project and development inanagement;

Afflecks Limited - L]
Bruntwood Circle Square 14 Limited 179 6
Brumwoad Management Services Limited 29,252 27,847
Usnify Management Sofutions Limited 334 180
Unify Energy Limited (Formerly Bruntwood Energy Secvices Limited) 1,630 2,770

During the year the group received income from the University of Manchester of £5,682,121 (202 1: £3,597,367) in respect of rent and related income. The
group incurred expeases of £3,000,000 (202 1z £nil) in respeet of capital ¢xpeaditure. The University of Manchesler is a shareholder in Manchester Scicnee
Partnerships Linited and D Manchester Limited.

During the year group received income from the Manchaster Metropolitan University of £313,074 (2021: Sales credits of £380) in respect of meeting rooms
rented. Manchester Metropoliten Universily is a shareholder in Manchester Science Partnerships Limited,

4]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
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24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The following amounts wete outstanding in relation to Bruntwood Group companies at the reporting date;

Afflecks Limited

Unify Energy Limited (Formerly Bruntwood Encrpy Services Limited)
Unify Management Solutions Limited

Bruntwood Estates Alpha Porfolio Limited

Bruntweod .G Limited

Bruntwood Management Services [imited

Rruntwond Circle Square 14 Limited

The University of Menchester

Manchester Metrapolitan University

Afflecks Limited

Unify Energy Limiled (Furmerly Brantwond Crergy Services Limited)
Bruntwood LG Limited

Brunhvond Management Services Limited

Bruntwond Meeting Rooms Limited

Brurtwood Circle Square {4 Limited

‘The University of ivianchester

All retated party balances are unsecored and interest free.

BRUNTWOOD SCIENCE LIMITED

2022 2022

£000 £000¢

Debtor Creditor

54 -

4 9

- 235

| -

14 5,550

3 189

166 -

209 -~
- 556 5993

2021 2021

£000 £000

Debtor Creditor

40 30

- 536

- &

39 3,348

40 -

- 36

710 -
820 4,013
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